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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR NG
_ » MARYLAND e w
BALTIM oRE CiTy S -
CapuNet, L.L.C,, et al., ) o
) L E
Plaintiffs, ) -
)
Vs, ) Case No.: 24-C-00-000549 OC
)
America OnLine, Inc, )
22000 AOL Way )
Dulles, Virginia 20166 )
)
Defendant. )
THIRD AMENDED AND RECAST CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
Inc.,

Come now Plaintiffs, CapuNet, LLC, Digizen, Inc., Millken Communications,

MetroNet Internet Services, Inc,,

as follows:
JURISDICTION AND VENUE
1. This Court has jurisdiction over this Matter pursuant to Md. Cts. & Jud. Proc. §
0-103.
2. Venue is proper in this action pursuant to Md. Cts. & Jud. Proc. § 6-202(3).

3. The Plaintiff, Capunet, LLC,isa Maryland corporation with its principal place of

business in Rockville, Maryland. Plaintiff CapuNet is ap internet service provider that provides

internet service to approximately



Virginia. Plaintiff Digizen is an internet service provider serving approximately 3000 customers,

5. The Plaintiff, Millken Communications, Inc., is a Maryland corporation with its

principal place of business in Rockville, Maryland. Plaintiff Miliken is an internet service provider

serving approximately 1800 customers.
6. The Plaintiff, MetroNet Internet Services, Inc., is a Maryland corporation with its

principal place of business in Baltimore, Maryland. Plaintiff MetroNet is an internet service

provider.

8.

CLASS ACTION AVERMENTS

9. Plaintiffs bring this action individually and as the representatives of all members of

a plaintiff class pursuant to Maryland Rule 2-



subsidiaries, affiliated entities, legal representatives, heirs, Successors and assigns.
11 Plaintiffs aver that the class is so numerous that joinder of all members is
impracticable. It ig Plaintiffs’ information and belief that there are more than 6,000 companies

that provided internet service to customers throughout the United States.

12,

Questions of law and fact which are common to the Plaintiffs and members of the

plaintiff class include:

a. Whether, when installed, Version 5 0 interferes with, interrupts, alters

and/or disables the Operation of non-AOL internet software

class?

c. Whether Defendant employed unlawful means to interfere with the business
relations of Plaintiffs and members of plaintiffs class?

d. Whether Defendant engaged in unfair and deceptive acts or practices in
trade or commerce in violation of Maryland’s Deceptive Trade Practices Act?

e. Whether Defendant fraudulently induced individual customers to install
Version 5.0 on their individual computers?

f Whether Defendant created or continued an unlawful restraint of trade?

g Whether Defendant knew that installers of Version 5.0 had relationships
with non-AOL internet access providers?

h. Whether Defendant intentionally designed, developed and distributed

1. Whether to deceive and/or induce users to install Version 5.0, Defendant

j. Whether to deceive and/or induce users to ipsta)] Version 5.0, Defendant



17. This action js brought by the Plaintiffs, individually and on behalf of those similarly

18 Defendant is the world’s largest internet access market provider.

20.

Version 5.0

21, At all times,



marketing, labeling, testing, sale and/or distribution of Version 5.0.
22. As part of its normal and intended function, Version 5 ¢ interferes with, interrupts,
alters and/or disables the operation of non-AQL internet software installed on individyal

computers, preventing customers from utilizing non-AQL internet access providers and interfering

with Plaintiffs’ and the class’ ability to provide internet access to Customers through affected

computers.

23.

operating system to become unstable,

24, Defendant was warned by beta testers about the effects of Version 5.0 on
non-AOL internet software and host computer systems.

25, Defendant chose not to alter Version 5.0 software or to warn the public that

Version 5.0 would alter the host computer’s communicatjons configurations, settings and system

files thereby interfering with, disry pting and/or terminating their use of other internet software and

providers.

26.

they wish Version 5.0 to become their defay] internet browser, Version 5.0 alters the computer’s
communicationg configurations, settings and system files and interferes with, interrupts, alters
user selects the “ne” option,

27, To date, over 50 actions have begp filed against Defendant by individual, consumer



28.

29



32 Plaintiffs reallege Paragraphs 1-31 of the amended complaint and incorporates
same by reference ip Count I as if fully set forth hereiy,

33.

business.

36. Defendant employed unlawfiy] means to encourage the installation and use of

Version 5.0 by consumers including the following;



effects of Version 5.0 on non-AQL internet software and knew or should have known that these
misrepresentations were false.

(iv).  Defendants intentionally represented that Version 5.0 was of particular

(v).  Defendant made these representations and/or actively concealed this

material information with the intention of deceiving customers and/or fraudulently inducing
customers to install Version 5.0,

(vi).  Defendant’s conduct was fraudulent and/or amounted to unfajr or
deceptive trade practices, as prohibited by Md. Code Ann., Commercial Law, §§13-301 et seq.

b. Through Version 5.0, Defendant intentionally accessed customer
computers and altered system settings, computer programs, files and code, interrupting the
operation of non-AQL internet software and/or other operating System programs. Said access,
alteration and damage was unauthorized and unlawful pursuant to Md. Code Ann., Art. 27, § 146.

37. Defendant further created or continued an unlawful restraint of trade. Through its

unfair and deceptive practices, Defendant has, or has attempted to, monopolize the trade and/or

11-204. The purpose of Defendant’s conduct was to exclude competition and/or to unlawfully

control or affect prices.

38. Defendants unlawfi conduct constitutes direct and tortious interference with the
business relations of the Plaintiffs and members of the plaintiff class.

39. As a proximate result of Defendants’ actions, Plaintiffs and members of the
plaintiff class have been prevented from providing the internet services required by their contracts
and customers have been unable to utilize and/or have terminated thejr internet service contracts

with Plaintiffs and members of the plaintiff class.

40. As a direct result of Defendants’ actions, Plaintiffs and members of the Plaintiff

class suffered a substantial losg of revenue in the form of



the problems Caused by Version 5.

COUNT I1: INTERFEREN CE wITH CONTRACTUAL RELATIONS

41. Plaintiffs reallege baragraphs 1-31 of the amended complaint ang incorporates

same by reference ip Count I as if fully set forth herein

42. Plaintiffs ang members of the plaintiff subclagg are internet accesg providers that

provide interpet Service to certain Customers pursuant to existing, term-certain, internet service

tontracts with thoge Customers,

43, Defendant knew that Plaintiffs ang members of the Plaintiff subclagg had internet

44, Defendant intentionally designed, developed and distributed Version 5.0 to

Computers.



47. As a proximate result of Defendants’ actions, Plaintiffs and members of the

plaintiff subclagg have been prevented from providing the internet services required by their

attorneys’ fees, injunctive relief, and sych other further relie

and appropriate.

enneth F. Yateg
Fritz Schneider

YATES & § CHNEIDER



il
- Gathings, 11 ‘

GS, KENNEDY & Agst CIATES
2700 Highway 280 East
Suite 380

Birmingham, Alabama 35793
(205) 803-3006

CERTIFICATFR OF SERVICE

I hereby ce %W a true copy of the foregoing was sent via Unijted States mail to the
tbliowing on this dr ay ofAugust, 2000,

James P Ulwick, Esquire
KRAMON & G

One South Street, Suite 2600

Baltimore, Maryland 21202
Thomas D Yannucci, P.C
Eugene F. Assaf
KIRKLAND & ELLIS

055 Fifteenth Street, N.W.
Suite 1200

Washington, D.C. 20005

Randal] J Boe

Laura E. Jep

AMERICA ONLINE, INC.
22000 AOL Way

Dulles, Virginia 20166







IN THE
CIRCUIT COURT FOR
BALTIMORE CITY
CAPUNET, L.L.C,, et al.,
Plaintiffs, Case No. 24-C-00-000549 OC
V.
Hon. John C. Themelis
AMERICA ONLINE, INC.,
Defendant.
ORDER

Upon consideration of Defendant America Online’s Motion to Dismiss First
Amended Complaint or Transfer Case, and the Court having heard and considered the
arguments of counsel, as presented in the briefs and at oral argument, it is, this E}\/day of
July, 2000, by the Circuit Court for Baltimore City,

HEREBY ORDERED AS FOLLOWS:

1. Count I of Plaiﬁtiffs’ First Amended Complaint (interference with
contractual relations) is hereby dismissed. Pursuant to Maryland Rule 2-322(c), the Court
grants Plaintiffs leave to amend this Count J.

2. With respect to Count I1 of the First Amended Complaint (interference with
prospective economic relations), Plaintiffs shall file an amended complaint clarifying the
"wrongful" or "unlawful" acts that Defendant is alleged to have comimitted, and whether

the contracts between Plaintiffs and their customers that are implicated in this Count are

at-will.



3. Plaintiffs shall have 30 days from the date of entry of this Order to file such

an amended complaint as set forth i paragraphs 1 and 2 above.

4, In addition, the Court finds -- in view of the unique facts, circumstances and
procedural history of this litigation to date -- that the interests of justice and the
convenience of the parties require that this case be transferred to the Circuit Court for
Montgomery County. Accordingly, pursuant to Maryland Rule 2-327(c), the Court orders

that this action be, and hereby is, transferred to the Circuit Court for Montgomery County.

' JUDGE:
' JOHN C. THEMELTIS

N - JUDGES SIGNATURE APPEARS
Dated: July ¥ 2000 ON - ORIGINAL COPY —_—

jﬁ&éi/ :
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT o
DISTRICT OF MASSACHUSETTS X

GALAXY INTERNET SERVICES, INC. .
On Behalf Of Itself And All Others
Similarly Sitated,

Plajnriff,

)

)

;
v_ 00LTV65] GAD
AMERICA ONLINE, INC., ;)
)
)

CLASS ACTION ZONPLAINT T
D -

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED . = =
Defendagt. L e o2 s
z o Then
BRI
Individua} apd Representative Plaiptisr Qalaxy Internet Services, Inc., on behalf o

itself and all others similarly situated, alleges as follows:

L. NATURE OF THIS ACTION

Plaintiff brings this action on behalf of itself and all other Internet Service Providers
") who have subscribers who bave downloaded or installe
distributed by Defendant America Online,

("ISPg d software developed and
Inc. ("AQL"Y),

known as Version 5.0 (Version 5.0
and any incrementaj versions are collectively referred o

berein ag "AQL 5.0M,

the future download or install AOL 5.0, onto their persona] computers.

Defendant
conceived, developed ang distributed AQL 5.0 pursuant o ag unlawfyl s

cheme to injure and
destroy its Competitors in the Internet Service Market,



Whot

P.14

TSI WBi g5

L. PARTIES
1. Plaintiff, Galaxy Internet Services, Inc., is corporation duly organized under
the laws of the Commonwealty of Massachusetls, with its principal place of business in

Newton, Massachusetts.

2. Defendant, America Ounline, Inc,, ("AOL") is ap mternet service pProvider and

/aol'isp/galaxy.cmp
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Massachusetts.

1. JURISDICTION AND VENUE
3. This Court hag Jurisdiction over this tause pursuant to 18 U.5.C. §1030(g), 15
U.S.C. &4, 15 U.S.C. 315 and 28 1.8, C. §1331 (federat question), This ~ourt hag
Jurisdiction over the state law clairns alleged in thig Complaint pursuant 0 28 U.S.C. §1367-

(supplementa] Jurisdicton).

“ompurers, comprised of milliogs of computers throughout the world which either use or can
interact with the TCP/IP protocol. The Intemet offers Computer users access tq data,
Eraphics, sound, software, text, hypertext "wap Pages” and people through a variety of

Services and togs for Communication and data ¢xchange, Including remote login, file

/aol-isp/galnxy.unp
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transfer, electronic mail (e-mail), news and "browﬂng" software.

6. Computer users who wish to access the internet generally have to subscribe {o
an “internet service provider” or “interpet access provider” ( "ISP"), which have 4 network
of servers, routers and modems, attached to 5 permanent, high-speed connection 1o one of
the larger networks in the system. 1SPs typically offer dial-up access to the internet, emajl
Services apg possibly other services, such as web hosting, domain name service and
Proprietary onlige services availabje only to subscribers. There are 8pproximately 7,200
ISPs in the Uniteg States, ranging in size from small, local providers with a few thousand
subscribers to nationwide providers with millions of subscribers.

| 7. ISPs charge a fee for the service of Providing Internet access, Charges depend

O variables such ag the f¥pe of connection, modem speed and leve] of service. While some

electronic majj ("e-mail"). AQOL also provides customers with Rews, discussion groups and

Other exclusive “content”. Ip addition, AQL Permits subscribers 1o other ISPs to access its

-4 .
/anl‘bp/galnxy.cmp
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has engaged in masgjve multi-media, direct mail. apd larget marketing, édvmising and

7

sales campaign, which includeg offering free software for accessing its service apd trial

Subscriptions,

tomputer systems. Accordingly, purchasers of new compurers are ofteq solicited to become
AOL customers by interactive software whep thcy "log on" 10 thejr LeW computer urging
them to "click” o the AOQL icon to install AQL’g software,

12 In October, 1999, AOL released a New version of its software -- Amerjca

Ounline Version 5.9 ("AQOL 5.0"). In connection with AQL’s release of AQL 5.0, AQL

Pictures* apd "My Calendar. "

13.  In reliance upon AQL's Tepresentations that 5, Was superior 1o previous

«5.
/aol-isp/gnlaxy.cmp
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versions of the Software, at least 8 million AQL Customers haye currently installed or
downloaded AOL 3.0,

14.  These representations were false. In fac, downloading 5.0 unnecessarily
‘changes” the host system’s communications configuration and SCILngs 50 as to jnterfere with
41y non-AOL communications software and services the customer might be using or might
want to use in the future, including the software and services provided by Plaintiff apd
members of the Class. Thus, after instelling AOL 5.0, users were no longer able to connect
to other ISPs, ncluding the Plaintiff and the Class, and were o longer able to myg non-AQL,
€-mail programs, ineluding thoge offered by Plaintisy and the Class. These changes in the
settings and configurations on users’ computers ogcuy regardless of whethay they responded
"10" when agkeq during the instailation Process for 5.0 if they wanted to make AOL their
"default Provider *

IS, Plaintiff and the Class have received Oumerous complaints from their

Potential new subscribers when they attempe to connect to a gon-AQL service,

16, On information ang belief AQL, purposely designed 5.0 g change the settings
and configurations op personal computers in sych 4 way that it would become difficult, if pot
mpossible, for existing and Prospective subscribers of Plaintiff and the Clagg to utilize the

internet accesg Services offered by Plaintiff ang the Class,

17 AOL kpew or should have known that the 5.0 upgrade would and wijj make
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of competing ISPs. In fact, upon information and belief, AOL made the aforementioned
Inisrepresentations and material omissions to ngers concerning the changes that installation of
3.0 would make to thejr computers in an effort to interfere with thejr ability to utilize other
ISP’s that compete with AOL,

18, AOL's aforementioned business practices, misrepresentations and mateyial

inordinate amoupts of time attempting to undo the changes made by 5.0 to their subscribers’
computers. At the same time, AQL hag profited through its unfair Competition, by among

other things, making it difficulr for Plaintiff and members of the Class to compete in the

Y. CLASS ALLEGATIONS
19.  Plaintiff brings this action ag 3 Class action on behalf of itself and all others
similarly situareq Pursuant to Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The Class is

defined ang described ag follows:

All Internet Service Providers ("ISPs™) in the United States of
Arerica who have subscribers who have downloaded or

20.  Excluded from the Class are the Defendant in this action, any entity in which
Defendant hag 4 controlling interest, officers, directors of Defendant ang the legal

Tepresentatives, heirs, Successors and assigns of Defendant,

-7.

/aoi-isp/galaxy-cmn
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time, there are approximately seven thousand ISPs 1 the Unjted States. Of AQL's 22

a3 a result of AQLg actions.

22, Plaintiff's claims are typical of the claimg of the members of the Class as
Plaintiff sugtained damages arising out of AOTL’s attempted monopolization, unfajr
Competition, unfair gp deceptive trade practices, wrongful interference with existing or
Prospective contractia] telations, and violations of 1g U.8.C. $1030 and 18 U.s.C. §2701.

23, Plaimiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the rémbers of the

25. Common questions of law and fact exist ag 1o all members of the Class and

these questions of Jaw and fact common 1o the Class are:

a. Whether AOL attempted to monopolize the Iniernet Service Market in

-8.
/aol-isp/gnlaxy.cmp
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violation of 15 U.8.C. §2;

b. Whether AOL atempted to eliminate competition in the Interpet

Service Market in violatlon of 15 U.S.C. §14.

c. Whether AOL violated 18 U.8.C. 81030, the Computer Fraud ang

Violations;
d. Whether AOL engaged in unfair competition with the Plaintiff and the

Class in violation of Common law and various state statutes which prohibit unfair methods of

f. Whether AOL interfered with Plaintiff’s and the Class’ existing and

Prospective contractua) relationships with their subscribers:

g. Whether Plaintiff and the members of the Class have sustained

damages, and if 80, what is the broper remedy for thoge damages; and

h. Whether the Plaintiff and the Class are entltled to injunceive relief.

COUNT 1

(Attempted Monopolization of Internet Service Market
in Violation of 15 U.S.C. 82)

/aol-isp/galuy.cmp
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alleges, zg follows, against Defendant:

27, Through its ynfajr and deceptive marketing practices AQL has attempted to

29.  Plaintiff and the Class have been damaged as a direct ang proximate resylt of

and practices ag alleged above, in an amount to be determined at trial.

COUNT 11

(Attempt to Eliminate Competition
in Violation of 15 U.8.C. §14)

alleges, ag follows, againg Defendapt:

3. Through the conduct alleged above, AQL bas attemnpted to eliminate

competition in the Interpet Service Market, There Is no legitimate business Justfication for

the features of AOL 5.0 which cause it to interfae with subscribers® ability 1o access other

ISPy’ services, including those offered by Plainuiss and the Class. AQL failed to use the 1eagr

restrictive means fop achieving its busipess Objectives.

« 10 -
/MI—isp/galaxy.cmp
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33.  The above conduct of Defendant resulted in and wag designed top Substantially

lessen competitio in the Internet Service Markey,

34 Asa direct and proximate result of the Bti-competitive gotg and practices

alleged above, Corapetition in the Internet Service Market was substantially lessepeq and was

COUNT Iy

36.  The bersonal computers OPerated by the subscribers of Plaintiff and the Class

/ao!—isp/gajaxy.cmp
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access internet and wep sites in other states or countries and to send and recelve email to and
from other states and countries.

37, Defendant has knowingly and wity intent to defrayd the Plaintiff’s and Clasg’
subscribers, accessed their Personal computers without authorization, or exceeded authorized
access, and obtained z thing of valye, to wit, the subscribers’ custom and trade, in viglation
of 13 U.s.C. §1030(a)(4).

38.  Defendant has kmowingly cayseq the transmission of 2 Program, information,
code, or command, and as a result of such conduet, intentionally caysed damage without
authorization, to e Computers of Plaintiff’s apg the Class’ subscribers, in viplation of 18
U.s.cC. §1030(a)(5)(A).

39.  Defendant hag intentionally accessed the computers of Plaintiffs’ and the Class’
subscribers, without authorization, and ag a result of such conduct, caused damage, i
violation of 18 U.Ss.C. §1030(a)(5)(B) and (C).

40.  Such damage included the ullecessary and injurious deletion and modification

imnpairing and/or completely blocking the ability to mp Plaintiff’s and the Class’ software and

Connect to Plaintiff’s and the Class’ interper services,

determjned at trial.

-12.
/aol-isp/gahxy.cmp
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COUNT 1v
(Violation of 18 U.5. ., $2701)
42, Individual and Representative Plaintiff, on behajf of itself and the Class,

realleges, as if fully get forth, each and every prior allegation contained herein ang further

alleges, ag fallows, against Defendant:

43, Through the digtribution of AQL 5.0 Defendant has intentionally accesseg
without 2utharization or ig excess of its authorization he computer systems of Plaintiff’s and
the Class’ subscribers and thereby prevented authorized access to their electronic

conununications i violation of 18 U.S.C. §2701.

alleges, as follows, againgt Defendant;

46. Plaintiff, the Clagg and Defendant are a1 éngaged in trade or commerce,

/aol—isp/galaxy.mp
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Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 93A. 82, aud the similar unfair o deceptive trade

practices statutes of other states.

48.  Plaintiff and (e Class have suffered 2 loss of MOney or propenty as a result of

COUNT vy

(Tortious Interference With Existing and Prospective
Contractua) Relationships)

49.  Individual apg Representative Plaintiff, on bepalf of itself and the Class,
realleges, as if fully set forth, each and cvery prior allegation contained herein and further
alleges, as follows, apainst Defendant: |

50, AQL tortiously interfered with the existing and Prospective contractya}
relationshipg of Plaintiff and the Cjagg in making iy virtuajly impossible for thair existing and
Praspective subscribers to access and utilize their services.

51, Asa result, Plaintiff and the Class have beeg damaged.

-14.
/aol-isglgalaxy.mp
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FRA FOR RELIEF
WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays that:

1. The Court adjudge and decree that the Plaintiff is a fair and adequate

TePIesentative of the Class, as defined above, and that notice of (hjs actlon be given to the
class in the most effective practicable manner;

2, The Court enter Jjudgement for the Plaintiff ang the Clags;

Teasonable attomeys’ fees;

4, The Defendant be Perpervally enjoined and restra

ined from in a1y manner
directly or indirectly,

marketing and distributing Version 5.0
3. The Defendant bhe perpetually enjoined and restr;

ained from ig auy manner
directly or indirectly,

6. The Court grant such other, further and different rejief a5 the Court deemg Jjust
and proper
JURY DEMAND
Plaintif;

~15.
/aoz-isp/gaiaxy.cm P
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DATED: April 3, 2000

Of Counsel:

Hal K. Levitte

Law Offices of Hal K. Levitte
45 School Street

Boston, MA 02108

/aol-isp/galaxy.cm P

el G. Gilman (BBO #192760)
Jouglas M, Brooks (BBO #058%850)
Daniel D' Angslo (BBO #630321)
GILMAN AND PASTOR, LLp
One Boston Place, 28th Floor
Boston, MA 02108

Tel (617) 589-3750

Fax (617) 5893749
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